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Dear Ms. Robinson,

Alex Roark Engineering has reviewed the Transportation Analysis for the
proposed TradeWinds Island Grand Resort development prepared by Lincks &
Associates, Inc. dated March 28, 2024 and we offer the following comments.
Based on the comments below, to accurately reflect an analysis of the
transportation conditions, the study will need to be revised.

1. Background traffic growth does not match Forward Pinellas Level of
Service Report.

a. In this analysis, the maximum traffic volume (peak hour peak
direction) in 2029 on Gulf Boulevard from 75" Avenue to the Pinellas
Bayway is 1,190. These volumes were developed using an annual
growth rate of 2% per year based on 2023 traffic counts. However,
the 2023 Forward Pinellas Level of Service Report, which used traffic
counts from 2022 for their 2023 report, shows this segment of Gulf
Boulevard with a traffic volume of 1,215. Therefore, it is not possible
that both of these can be accurate as the report suggests that in 2029
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the traffic volume will be 1,190 (maximum) which is less than the
Forward Pinellas Level of Service Report from 2022. Note that if the
1,215 volume was used as a base volume grown at 2% per year and
the other projects traffic were added to that background traffic, it is
likely that segments of Gulf Boulevard would exceed a v/c ratio of 0.9
and would therefore be considered deficient.

2. Not All of the Project Traffic was Distributed or Analyzed.

The project traffic distribution from the project site distributes 63% to
the north on Gulf Boulevard and 29% to the south on Gulf Boulevard.
Therefore, only 92% of the project traffic was distributed (and
included in the analysis). Therefore over 71 project trips are
unaccounted for in the analysis. The traffic model shows most of
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these trips traveling from the project site to locations between the
project site and 59" Avenue, a distance of approximately 500 feet,
which is questionable given the land uses in that area and the short
distance to drive in a vehicle versus alternative modes.

3. Pass-By Calculations are Inappropriate.

a. The trip generation estimate for the retail space used Land Use Code
(LUC) 822 which is for a Strip Retail Plaza that is less than 40,000
square feet. The description of this LUC from ITE is attached to this
letter. Since the retail land use inside of a resort hotel does not
operate like a Strip Retail Plaza, as analyzed, and there are likely to
be access and parking prohibitions or at least perceived prohibitions,
it is questionable that traffic just passing by would utilize these retail
spaces. Therefore, the use of any pass-by reductions in this situation
is questionable.

b. Pass-by reductions in trip generation for the analysis is permitted for
uses that attract traffic from the existing roadway traffic, but they do
not create new trips. For example, many gas station trips are part of
another trip and drivers typically stop at a gas station while on their
way somewhere else (work or home, etc.). Since this is not a new
trip on the road, additional traffic was not added to the road. The
same applies to some retail uses. For the pass-by calculation
associated with this retail development, a land use code (821) that is
different than the land use code used for trip generation (822). While
these LUCs are related they are separated for a reason — they are
not the same. Also, the pass-by reduction percentage used from
LUC 821 was 40%. However, for Saturdays, which is likely when the
true peak hour occurs for this site, the pass-by reduction percentage
is only 31%. Also, the pass-by reduction percentage for LUC 820
(the most common retail LUC) is only 29%.
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4. The Trip Generation estimates use two different methods.

a. To establish the study network, ITE was used for the existing site trip
generation estimates. However, for the impact analysis, it appears
the driveway counts were used for existing trip generation estimates.
If there are parts of the existing site that are currently not in operation,
then the existing site may be currently generating fewer trips than
when in full operation and therefore driveway counts would represent
an inaccurately low trip generation. Using two methodologies to
estimate existing trip generation is inconsistent. A singular, accurate,
trip generation method should be used throughout the analysis, and
in this case, it should be ITE.

5. Volumes used from other studies were incorrect.

a. Because traffic volumes were utilized from the Sirata Hotel traffic
analysis directly, all of the previous comments submitted are
applicable here (see the Alex Roark Engineering letter Re: Sirata
Beach Resort Redevelopment traffic study review dated December 2,
2023).
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b. The volumes on Gulf Boulevard from the TradeWinds to the Pinellas
Bayway link from the Sirata Resort traffic analysis is wrong.
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Avenue has these volumes in the Sirata study.

6. The Trip Generation calculations do not match the Conceptual Site
Plan.

a. The “Conceptual Site Plan with Uses” shows 650 “Hotel Keys”, however
the trip generation in the transportation analysis only includes 629 hotel
rooms.

b. The Conceptual Site Plan shows 37,640 square feet of “retail &
restaurants”. Unless there are 19,853 square feet of restaurants, then
the 17,787 square feet of retail included in the transportation analysis is
inaccurate.

Based on this review, this Traffic Impact Analysis should be revised to
accurately reflect an assessment of the transportation impacts associated with
this proposed development. This review was not comprehensive but rather a
summary of the larger issues. Further review may result in more issues in the
details. Please let us know if you have any questions.

Sincerely,

{7 ‘
| / A

Drew Roark, PE, CTL
Vice President
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Land Use: 822
Strip Retail Plaza (<40k)

Description

A strip retail plaza is an integrated group of commercial establishments that is planned,
developed, owned, and managed as a unit. Each study site in this land use has less than 40,000
square feet of gross leasable area (GLA). Because a strip retail plaza is open-air, the GLA is the
same as the gross floor area of the building.

The 40,000 square feet GFA threshold between strip retail plaza and shopping plaza (Land Use
821) was selected based on an examination of the overall shopping center/plaza database. No
shopping plaza with a supermarket as its anchor is smaller than 40,000 square feet GLA.

Shopping center (>150k) (Land use 820), shopping plaza (40-150k) (Land Use 821), and factory
outlet center (Land Use 823) are related uses.

Additional Data

The technical appendices provide supporting information on time-of-day distributions for this
land use. The appendices can be accessed through either the ITETripGen web app or the trip

The sites were surveyed in the 1980s, the 1990s, the 2000s, and the 2010s in Alberta (CAN),
California, Delaware, Florida, New Jersey, Ontario (CAN), South Dakota, Vermont, Washington, and
Wisconsin.

Source Numbers
304, 358, 423, 428, 437, 507, 715, 728, 936, 960, 961, 974, 1009
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